
           
  

 
City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers

1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, March 6, 2023
Immediately following the Work Session that begins at 5:00 PM

 

Mayor
Joe Pizzillo

_______________

Vice Mayor
Laura Kaino

_______________

Councilmember
Sheri Lauritano

_______________

Councilmember
Wally Campbell

_______________

Councilmember
Bill Stipp

_______________

Councilmember
Brannon Hampton
_______________

Councilmember
Vicki Gillis

_______________

CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR
Please complete a speaker card and submit it to the City Clerk prior to the meeting being
convened, if possible. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Once the City Clerk
has called your name, step up to the lectern and begin by clearly stating your name for
the record and whether you are a Goodyear resident.

NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any non-agenda item
within the jurisdiction of the City Council. The City Council will listen to comments and
may take any of the following actions:

Respond to criticism.
Request that staff investigate and report on the matter.
Request that the matter be scheduled on a future agenda.

AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any item on the
Consent, Public Hearing and/or Business portions of the agenda. Each speaker's name
will be called in turn once the item has been reached and after City staff have
completed their presentation.

PROCEDURES
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Goodyear
City Council and to the general public that the Council of the city of Goodyear will hold a
meeting open to the public. Public body members of the city of Goodyear will attend
either in person or by telephone conference call and/or video communication. The
Goodyear City Council may vote to go into Executive Session, pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3), which will not be open to the public, to discuss certain matters.
Meetings are conducted in accordance with the City Council Meetings Council Rules of
Procedure adopted by Resolution No.2018-1879
 
  

City Clerk’s Office: 1900 N. Civic Square, Goodyear, AZ 85395 (623) 882-7830
www.goodyearaz.gov/cityclerk 
City Council Meeting Live Broadcast: https://www.facebook.com/goodyearazgov/videos



Monday, March 6, 2023   Meeting Agenda

Immediately following the Work Session that begins at 5:00 p.m.
           
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY COUNCILMEMBER HAMPTON
 

APPOINTMENTS

 

1. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the appointments and re-appointments to the Boards, Commissions and

Committees. (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 

CONSENT

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  Recommendation
  Approve the draft minutes from the Regular Meeting held on February 27, 2023.

(Darcie McCracken, City Clerk) 
 
3. CREATION OF CIP PROJECT #60112 GOODYEAR WRF MASTER PLAN,

AUTHORIZE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND EXPENDITURES
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the creation of CIP project #60112 Goodyear Water Reclamation Facility

(WRF) Master Plan and related budget amendment of $800,000 and authorize
expenditure of funds up to $695,000. (Barbara Chappell, Water Services Director;
Lisa Melton, Senior Project Manager).

 
4. RIO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH RIO REIMAGINED

COALITION
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Authorize the Mayor or designee to enter into an IGA with the Rio Reimagined



  Authorize the Mayor or designee to enter into an IGA with the Rio Reimagined
coalition to move forward with a RIO Ambassador to the UWFP. (Ginna Carico,
Government Relations Manager; Christian M. Williams, Principal Planner; Cecilia
Riviere, Assistant Director Arizona State University)

 
5. FINAL PLAT FOR CAMELBACK CENTER AT PV303  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the Final Plat for Camelback Center at PV303. (Marty Crossland, Interim

Deputy Director of Development Engineering)
 
6. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF FOUR FY2023

CIP PROJECTS
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve expenditures in the amount of $615,000 to complete four FY2023 CIP

Construction Projects - #42054, #42055, #42057, and #42059. (Hugh Bigalk, P.E.,
City Traffic Engineer)

 
7. THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 10-11
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2295 APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO

THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 10-11;
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE THIRD
AMENDMENT; PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR FUTURE ACTIONS; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Sarah Chilton, Deputy City Attorney)

 
8. APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS & RELATED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve budget amendments & related expenditure authority. (Doug Sandstrom,

Finance Director)
 

BUSINESS

 

9. PROPOSALS TO GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR ARIZONA REVISED
STATUTE 5-601-02 12 PERCENT GAMING DISTRIBUTION FUNDS

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  1.    ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2023-2293, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF

TWO PUBLIC SAFETY APPLICATIONS FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE GRANT
PROGRAM FUNDS TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY, AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS RELATING TO SAID
APPLICATIONS, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
GRANT AGREEMENT (IF GRANT FUNDS ARE AWARDED), AND AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE THE REQUIRED BUDGET TRANSFER (IF
GRANT FUNDS ARE AWARDED).



2.    ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2023-2294, SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A
TRANSPORTATION APPLICATION BY THE SOUTHWEST VALLEY FAMILY YMCA
TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE
GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
ACCEPT AND ADMINISTER SUBSEQUENT AWARDED FUNDS AS A
PASS-THROUGH GRANT. (Christina Panaitescu, Grants & Neighborhood Services
Supervisor)

 
10. FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROJECTS  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve expenditures up to $3,678,789 for FY2023 pavement management projects.

(Hugh Bigalk, P.E., City Traffic Engineer; Brian Harvel, Streets Superintendent)
 

INFORMATION ITEMS
 

Comments, commendations, report on current events and presentations by Mayor,
Councilmembers, staff or members of the public. The Council may not propose, discuss,
deliberate or take any legal action on the information presented, pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.02.
 

Reports from the Mayor and City Council
This may include current events and activities as well as requests for information or
future agenda items.

Report from the City Manager
This may include updates from events, staff summary, update of legislative issues,
clarification on items being requested by City Council and Manager's update on
Council Related Matters.

 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:

 
March 20, 2023 Council Meeting 5:00 p.m.

 

ADJOURNMENT

 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE
TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. With 48-hour advance notice, special assistance can be
provided for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons at this meeting. Reasonable
accommodations will be made upon request for persons with disabilities or non-English
speaking residents. Please call the City Clerk (623) 882-7830 or Arizona Relay (TDD) 7-1-1 to
request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting.



For Non-English assistance please contact the City Clerk at (623) 882-7830.

Si necesita asistencia o traducción en español, favor de llamar al menos 48 horas antes de la
reunión al  (623) 882-7830.

POSTING VERIFICATION
This agenda was posted on 03/01/2023 at 5:00 p.m. by PP.



ITEM #: 1. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1364

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND

COMMITTEES
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

SUMMARY
Approve the recommendations of the Council Subcommittee: Boards, Commissions and
Committees.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the appointments and re-appointments to the Boards, Commissions and Committees.
(Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct budget impact associated with these appointments.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The City Council Subcommittee: Boards, Commissions and Committees met on February 28,
2023.  After review of the applications, the Subcommittee recommends the following
appointments and re-appointments:

Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board Re-Appointments 
Name Start Expires

Michael Balsan March 7, 2023 March 6, 2026
Jennifer Preyer-Bonton March 7, 2023 March 6, 2026

Public Improvement Corporation 
Name Start Expires

Peter Diliberti March 7, 2023 March 6, 2026
Brian Murphy March 7, 2023 March 6, 2026

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission Alternate Appointment 
Name Start Expires

Brian Murphy March 7, 2023 March 6, 2027



Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission Re-Appointments 
Name Start Expires

Kiesha Beard March 7, 2023 March 6, 2027
John Cox March 7, 2023 March 6, 2027



ITEM #: 2. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1166

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

SUBJECT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Recommendation
Approve the draft minutes from the Regular Meeting held on February 27, 2023. (Darcie
McCracken, City Clerk) 

Attachments
February 27, 2023 Draft Regular Meeting Minutes 



City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers
1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, February 27, 2023 5:00 p.m. Meeting Minutes

               
CALL TO ORDER
 
  Mayor Pizzillo called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
 
ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Joe Pizzillo; Vice Mayor Laura Kaino; Councilmember Sheri Lauritano; 

Councilmember Wally Campbell; Councilmember Bill Stipp; Councilmember 
Brannon Hampton; Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Staff
Present:

City Manager Wynette Reed; City Attorney Roric Massey; City Clerk Darcie
McCracken 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY COUNCILMEMBER CAMPBELL
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 
  Mike Goodwin, staff member of Campbell Snacks, spoke about the need to activate the

streetlight at Bullard Avenue.

Goodyear resident Jennifer Barber commended the City for prioritizing the second fire
station in Estrella, spoke about her opposition to three legislative proposals, and asked
for environmental impacts to be added to Council reports.  

 

CONSENT

 
  MOTION BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, SECONDED BY Councilmember Sheri 

Lauritano to APPROVE Consent Agenda items 1 through 5.  The motion carried as
follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

1 



1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the draft minutes from the February 6, 2023 Regular Meeting. (Darcie
McCracken, City Clerk) 

  

 
2. CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

 
RECOMMENDATION
Recognize the City Council subcommittee appointments for 2023. (Rosalva Zimmerman,
Assistant to the Mayor)

  

 
3. APPROVE EXPENDITURE UP TO $584,200 FOR THE PURCHASE AND

INSTALLATION OF AN AERATION BLOWER AT THE GOODYEAR WATER
RECLAMATION FACILITY 
 
RECOMMENDATION
Approve expenditure of funds up to $584,200 to purchase and install an aeration blower
at the Goodyear Water Reclamation Facility. (Todd Carpenter, Process Operations
Manager; Stephen Scinto, Interim Deputy Public Works Director)

  

 
4. FINAL PLAT FOR CITRUS PARK PHASE 2B

 
RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Final Plat of Citrus Park Phase 2B subdividing approximately 43 acres
generally located near the southwest corner of Lower Buckeye Road and Citrus Road into
155 lots and 44 tracts (the “Platted Property”). (Marty Crossland, Interim Deputy Director
of Development Engineering)

  

 
5. AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURE OF DESIGN FUNDS FOR APPROVED FY2023

CIP PROJECT #42026 - ESTRELLA PARKWAY AND BRIDGE PROJECT
 
RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the expenditure of design funds for Construction Manager At Risk
(CMAR) Pre-construction services on the Estrella Parkway and Bridge project not to
exceed $562,600. (Hugh Bigalk, City Traffic Engineering; Troy Scott, Senior Project
Manager Engineering)

  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS

 
6. REZONE APPROXIMATELY 152 ACRES LOCATED WEST OF BULLARD AVENUE

ALONG MCDOWELL ROAD TO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) DISTRICT
BY ADOPTING GSQ REGIONAL CENTER PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD)

  

 
  Mayor Pizzillo opened the public hearing at 5:11 p.m.

Principal Planner Christian Williams presented information on the request to rezone 152
acres for Goodyear Square (GSQ) Regional Center PAD. He provided information on
the property location, neighborhood, and current zoning designations and the request to
rezone to a mix of uses, commercial and multifamily.  He outlined several changes
requested to be included in Table 5.

2 



RG Land Partners, LLC representative Ed Bull thanked the Council and staff for the
positive collaboration and offered to answer any questions.

There being no additional speakers, Mayor Pizzillo closed the public hearing at 5:28 p.m.

Council expressed excitement for the overall project and inquired about the car wash
distance from arterial streets, the number of drive thru's permitted, and the height of
buildings permitted in Area A. Mr. Williams responded the car wash distance was 200 to
250 feet, there is a limitation of 2 stand-alone drive thru's and the maximum height
permitted is 60 feet. 

 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Bill Stipp, SECONDED BY Councilmember Wally 
Campbell to  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2278, DECLARING AS PUBLIC
RECORDS THOSE CERTAIN DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO AND INCORPORATED
BY REFERENCE IN ORDINANCE NO. 2023-1561 FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK
RELATED TO THE REZONING CASE FOR – GSQ REGIONAL CENTER. Motion
carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
  MOTION BY Councilmember Bill Stipp, SECONDED BY Councilmember Wally 

Campbell to ADOPT WITH NOTED CHANGES ORDINANCE NO. 2023-1561,
CONDITIONALLY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 152 ACRES OF PROPERTY
LOCATED WEST OF BULLARD AVENUE ALONG MCDOWELL ROAD TO BE
KNOWN AS GSQ REGIONAL CENTER; AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY
OF GOODYEAR; PROVIDING FOR NON-ABRIDGEMENT; PROVIDING FOR
CORRECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; AND DIRECTING THE CITY
CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE. Motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 

BUSINESS

 
7. APPROVE FIFTH AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RG LAND

PARTNERS, LLC
  

 
  City Attorney Roric Massey presented the elements of the proposed agreement.

Council requested clarification regarding the reimbursement process and the timeline for
completion of Goodyear Way.  Mr. Massey responded with the details of the fifty percent
reimbursement agreement on commercial development and the April 2025 deadline for
roadway completion.

 

3 



  MOTION BY Councilmember Brannon Hampton, SECONDED BY Councilmember 
Sheri Lauritano to APPROVE and authorize the City Manager to execute the 5th
Amendment to Development Agreement with RG Land Partners, LLC. Motion
carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
8. APPROVE EXPENDITURE UP TO $6,154,200 FOR PROJECT #30008 RENOVATION

OF FIRE STATION 183
  

 
  Senior Project Manager Mario Saldamondo in conjunction with Deputy Fire Chief Ed

Pahl presented information on the renovation of Fire Station 183 which was built in 1998.
 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Bill Stipp, SECONDED BY Councilmember Wally 
Campbell to APPROVE an expenditure up to $6,154,200 for the renovation of Fire
Station 183. Motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 

INFORMATION ITEMS

 
  Mayor Pizzillo shared information regarding a successful Mayor's Dinner that the

Governor also attended and the successful testimony regarding the funding request for
Estrella Bridge. 

City Manager Wynette Reed provided information about opening day and weekend for
spring training at Goodyear Ballpark. The City hosted Theater in the Park at Goodyear
Civic Square on Saturday. She noted over 400 hundred people in attendance with
multiple food trucks and activities offered free of charge. 

Councilmember Gillis expressed gratitude to Mayor Pizzillo and other mayors who
attended and testified regarding senate bills that negatively impact local governmental
funds.

 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:

 
March 6, 2023 Work Session 5:00 p.m.
March 6, 2023 Regular Meeting Immediately following the Work

Session

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION

4 



A VOTE MAY BE HELD TO CALL AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING:
 

9. Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A) (3) (4): Discussion and consultation with the City
Attorney for legal advice to consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the
City’s position regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations related to a
development agreement with Globe Corp. related to a parking agreement/structure for the
GSQ 2 project.

 
  and, 

 
10. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3)(4) & (5): Discussion and consultation for legal

advice with the City Attorney and City Manager and to consider its position and instruct its
representatives regarding contracts subject to negotiation, and to consider its position
and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations with employee organizations
regarding the salaries, salary structures or compensation paid in the form of fringe
benefits of employees of the public body regarding the Meet and Confer/Discuss process
with the Fire and Police labor representatives.

 
  MOTION BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, SECONDED BY Councilmember Bill 

Stipp to CONVENE an Executive Session. Motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano, Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, 
Councilmember Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
  Council moved into Executive Session at 6:01 p.m.
 
ADJOURNMENT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
  Mayor Pizzillo adjourned the Executive Session at 6:56 p.m.
 
RECONVENING OF REGULAR MEETING
 
  Mayor Pizzillo reconvened the Regular Meeting at 6:56 p.m.
 

ADJOURNMENT

 
There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Pizzillo adjourned the Regular Meeting at 6:56 p.m.

  
__________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

__________________________
Joe Pizzillo, Mayor

Date:___________________
 

5 



  

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the CITY
COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, held on February 27, 2023.  I further
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ____ day of ______________, 2023.                            SEAL:

_____________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

6 



ITEM #: 3. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1282

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: CREATION OF CIP PROJECT #60112 GOODYEAR WRF

MASTER PLAN, AUTHORIZE RELATED BUDGET
AMENDMENTS AND EXPENDITURES
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Barbara Chappell, Water Services Director; Lisa
Melton, Senior Project Manager

SUMMARY
Creation of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) project #60112 Goodyear Water Reclamation
Facility (WRF) Master Plan and authorize related budget amendments and expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the creation of CIP project #60112 Goodyear Water Reclamation Facility
(WRF) Master Plan and related budget amendment of $800,000 and authorize expenditure of
funds up to $695,000. (Barbara Chappell, Water Services Director; Lisa Melton, Senior Project
Manager).

FISCAL IMPACT
The proposed budget for the Goodyear WRF Master Plan project is $800,000. This will
provide funding for the study and development of the basis of design for the full project build
out which is currently planned for FY2027 of the CIP. Funding for this project is available in the
North Wastewater Development Impact Fee Fund. Recommendations from this study will be
incorporated into the appropriate years of the CIP.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The expansion of the Goodyear WRF was identified in the 2016 Integrated Water Master Plan
and is currently included in FY2027 of the CIP based on anticipated growth. A master plan
study is recommended to determine the desired technology, facility layout that would support
future expansion(s), buildout capacity, phasing and cost of an expansion. Based on the study,
future funding for design and construction will be included in the appropriate years of the CIP
to be developed for the FY2025 budget cycle.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Growth and city commitments to service the Goodyear WRF require the city to begin planning



Growth and city commitments to service the Goodyear WRF require the city to begin planning
for the next facility expansion. The Master Plan will determine the timing and scope for the
next phase of expansion. As a part of this project, the design team will account for the
upcoming reduction of brine flows in FY2025 and the potential for growth.

Upon approval, the master plan study will begin immediately with an anticipated completion
date in the second quarter of FY2024. The results will be utilized in the development of the
FY2025 budget and capital improvement plan. Design and construction will follow.



ITEM #: 4. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1285

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: RIO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH RIO

REIMAGINED COALITION
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Ginna Carico, Government Relations Manager;
Christian M. Williams, Principal Planner

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Cecilia Riviere, Assistant Director Arizona State University

SUMMARY
An Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Rio Reimagined (RIO) coalition relating to the
RIO Ambassador to the Urban Waters Federal Partnership (UWFP). The coalition is
comprised of Mesa, Tempe, Phoenix, Avondale, Goodyear, Buckeye, Maricopa County, the
Gila River Indian Community, Salt River Pima Maricopa Indian Community, and the Salt River
Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District. This IGA will provide the formal
agreement between all parties to engage an outside consultant through the Maricopa
Association of Governments (MAG) who will act as RIO Ambassador to the UWFP. 

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the Mayor or designee to enter into an IGA with the Rio Reimagined coalition to
move forward with a RIO Ambassador to the UWFP. (Ginna Carico, Government Relations
Manager; Christian M. Williams, Principal Planner; Cecilia Riviere, Assistant Director Arizona
State University)

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this IGA is $15,000 per year for the next four years, totaling $60,000.  The
2023 amount will be funded from the current Development Services Department budget. 
Future year amounts will be included in the budget as appropriate.  The IGA contains
commitment from each Party to make an equal, annual contribution to MAG to partially
reimburse MAG for the cost of the Ambassador’s Total Compensation.  In addition to
Goodyear, the parties to this agreement include the Cities of Avondale, Buckeye, Mesa,
Phoenix, Tempe, Gila River Indian Community, Maricopa County, Salt River Pima Maricopa
Indian Community, and Salt River Project.  MAG will serve as a fiscal agent to receive and
process the funding, as well as federal or other funding sources in support of the Ambassador
as needed or recommended by the Rio Advisory Board.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The original plan for the Rio Salado Project was developed in 1966 under the direction of



The original plan for the Rio Salado Project was developed in 1966 under the direction of
James Elmore, Dean of the University College of Architecture at Arizona State University, and
was published in a community report in 1969. Valley Forward (now known as Arizona
Forward) joined with the Rio Salado Project Committee in 1976 and developed a master plan
for the Rio Salado Project which proposed the redevelopment of approximately 40 miles of the
Rio Salado as it traversed metropolitan Phoenix, Tempe and Mesa. In 1980 legislation was
passed which allowed creation of the Rio Salado Development District which was tasked with
rallying support and preparing the strategic framework plan for the revitalization, funding and
implementation of the Rio Salado Project. The Rio Salado Master Plan was presented to the
public in 1982.

Since then, some of the Valley’s cities and communities have taken action to improve the Rio
Salado and its watershed by developing parks, bike paths, bridges, habitat restoration, flood
management and associated river enhancements. The Rio Salado has also undergone a
number of significant projects related to flood control, water treatment, environmental quality,
ecological restoration and public open space amenities, including the El Rio Watercourse
Master Plan, Tres Rios Habitat Restoration and Wetlands, Rio Salado Oeste, Rio Salado
Phoenix, Rio Salado Tempe, Rio Salado Mesa and Tempe Town Lake. Some of these
projects and improvements have had a positive effect on tourism, employment, housing, the
tax base, art and culture, recreation, economic development and wetland and riparian
rehabilitation, yet the Rio Salado remains significantly underdeveloped given its economic
potential.

U.S. Senator John McCain has championed and catalyzed the charge to complete the Rio
Salado Project and, with the Assistance of Arizona State University, establish a working group
to promote the project and assist in the overall planning, review and approval process for the
project. The Rio Salado Project is now envisioned to extend over 45 miles along the river’s
corridor and up to a mile wide through Maricopa County and span the City of Buckeye, City of
Goodyear, Gila River Indian Community, City of Avondale, City of Phoenix, City of Tempe, Salt
River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, and the City of Mesa. These communities
believe that the Rio Salado Project has the potential to be the focus of a grand vision for civic
identity - an iconic landmark for the Valley - which will promote and provide significant
economic, recreational and water conservation value.

On March 26, 2018, the City of Godyear City Council authorized the Mayor to execute the
Statement of Intent for the Rio Salado Project. On March 30, 2018, the City of Buckeye, the
City of Goodyear, the Gila River Indian Community, the City of Avondale, the City of Phoenix,
the City of Tempe, the Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, the City of Mesa,
Maricopa County, Arizona, and the Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power
District entered into a Statement of Intent (“SOI”) for the Rio Salado Project, which is now
known as Rio Reimagined.  The SOI describes the purposes of RIO and the signing parties’
commitments to pursuing specified goals and themes related to river revitalization for the Rio
Salado. 

It has been the desire of these communities, along with Arizona State University and other
stakeholder groups, such as landowners, developers, non-profit organizations, utilities &
services, and federal entities, and the greater public, to unite and create a cooperative
public-private relationship, and to organize, design and implement the Rio Salado Project to its
fullest economic, recreational and water conservation capacities.

Besides promoting the basic themes of economic development, transformation of a neglected



river environment into a recreational haven, and water recharge, conservation and flood
control, the participants in the Statement of Intent (SOI) agreed to work together cooperatively
to form a Rio Salado Authority to develop plans and pursue funding opportunities and facilitate
development of projects consistent with these themes and goals.

On September 1, 2020, the U.S. Government designated RIO as an Urban Waters Federal
Partnership location.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The Rio Reimagined collaborative and its stakeholders have identified the need for a full-time
professional who can act as the regional representative for RIO and oversee RIO’s
collaborations with federal agencies and stakeholders in connection with RIO’s UWFP
designation. The Ambassador will have regional responsibility for relationships and funding
related to UWFP, with direction from the Rio Advisory Board described in this IGA.

Attachments
Proposed IGA 



1 
 

RIO REIMAGINED – URBAN WATERS AMBASSADOR  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT / MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Intergovernmental Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of ________________, 2023 (the 
“Effective Date”), by and among the City of Avondale, the City of Buckeye, the City of Goodyear, the City 
of Mesa, the City of Phoenix, the City of Tempe, the County of Maricopa, the Salt River Pima-Maricopa 
Indian Community (“SRP-MIC”), the Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, the 
Arizona Board of Regents for and on behalf of Arizona State University, and the Maricopa Association of 
Governments, which joins in this Agreement by way of Memorandum of Understanding (each, a “Party” 
and, collectively, the “Parties”). 

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1 On March 30, 2018, the City of Buckeye, the City of Goodyear, the Gila River Indian 
Community, the City of Avondale, the City of Phoenix, the City of Tempe, the Salt River Pima-Maricopa 
Indian Community, the City of Mesa, Maricopa County, Arizona, and the Salt River Project Agricultural 
Improvement and Power District entered into a Statement of Intent (“SOI”) for the Rio Salado Project, 
which is now known as Rio Reimagined (“RIO”).  The SOI describes the purposes of RIO and the signing 
parties’ commitments to pursuing specified goals and themes related to river revitalization for the Rio 
Salado. 

1.2 Arizona State University (“ASU”), through its University City Exchange (“UCX”) is a non-
member facilitator and coordinating partner for RIO. 

1.3 On September 1, 2020, the U.S. Government designated RIO as an Urban Waters Federal 
Partnership location (“UWFP”).   

2. LEGAL AUTHORITY 

2.1 Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) §§ 11-951 through 11-954 provide that public agencies 
may enter into intergovernmental agreements for the provision of services or for joint or cooperative 
action.  

2.2 ASU is empowered by A.R.S. §§15-1625, et seq., to enter into this Agreement and has 
delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of ASU.   

2.3 The City of Avondale, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by Article I, Section 
3 of the Charter of the City of Avondale to enter into this Agreement, and by resolution of its City Council 
has been authorized to enter into this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this 
Agreement on its behalf. 

2.4 The City of Buckeye, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by Charter or 
Statute to enter into this Agreement, and by appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 



2 
 

2.5 The City of Goodyear, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by Charter or 
Statute to enter into this Agreement, and by appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.6 The City of Mesa, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by A.R.S. §§ 9-240 and 
9-276 to enter into this Agreement, and by appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.7 The City of Phoenix, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by Charter or 
Statute to enter into this Agreement, and by appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.8 The City of Tempe, an Arizona municipal corporation, is empowered by Charter or Statute 
to enter into this Agreement, and by appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this Agreement 
and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.9 The County of Maricopa, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, is empowered by 
statute to enter into this Agreement, and, by action of its Board of Supervisors, has been authorized to 
enter into this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.10 The Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, a sovereign tribal government, is 
empowered by Article VII, Section 1(h) of the SRP-MIC Constitution to enter into this Agreement, and by 
action of its Tribal Council has been authorized to enter into this Agreement and has authorized the 
undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.11 The Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, a political subdivision 
of the State of Arizona, is empowered by Charter or Statute to enter into this Agreement, and by 
appropriate action has been authorized to enter into this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned 
to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

2.12 The Maricopa Association of Governments joins in this Agreement by way of 
Memorandum of Understanding, and by action of its Board of Directors has been authorized to enter into 
this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on its behalf. 

3. PURPOSE 

3.1 The Parties have identified the need for a full-time professional who can act as the 
regional representative for RIO and oversee RIO’s collaborations with federal agencies and stakeholders 
in connection with RIO’s UWFP designation.   

3.2 The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which the 
Parties agree to: (a) the terms under which the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) will engage 
an outside consultant who will act as RIO Ambassador to the UWFP (the “Position”) with direction from 
an advisory group composed of one representative from each Party; and (b) contribute to the cost of the 
Position. 



3 
 

3.3 Nothing in this Agreement, or the funding of the Position, is intended to limit or otherwise 
restrict the right of any Party to secure and manage funding and relationships independently of the other 
Parties.   

4. THE POSITION 

4.1 The Position will include regional responsibility for relationships and funding related to 
UWFP, with direction from the Rio Advisory Board described in this Agreement.  The job description for 
the Position is set forth on Exhibit A.   

4.2 The individual occupying the Position will be an outside consultant engaged by MAG as 
an independent contractor and will report to a MAG-designated staff person. 

4.3 MAG shall be responsible for compensating the consultant occupying the Position (“Total 
Compensation”) using the amounts provided to MAG by the Parties pursuant to this Agreement as well 
as funding designated for the Position from other sources, including federal funding.  MAG will be 
responsible for processing such additional funding designated for the Position from third-party sources 
and will draw fiscal service fees in connection with MAG’s responsibilities under this Agreement from such 
funds.  The Parties will reimburse MAG for the cost of the Total Compensation on an annual basis during 
the Term of this Agreement as detailed in Exhibit B.  The Parties shall not owe or provide any 
reimbursement, compensation or fees to MAG above and beyond what is detailed in Exhibit B.   

4.4 During the Term of this Agreement, MAG will invoice each Party for its reimbursement 
contribution set forth in Exhibit B.  Each Party will remit payment upon receipt of MAG’s invoice by means 
of a check payable to MAG, electronic funds transfer or another agreed-upon transaction.  In the event 
that MAG does not receive full funding for the Position from the Parties and from third-party sources, 
MAG shall have no obligation to make up the difference. 

4.5 MAG will provide a secured physical work location for the individual occupying the 
Position as well as all reasonable administrative and peripheral support recommended by the Rio Advisory 
Board, and agreed to by MAG.   

4.6 At any Party’s request, MAG shall provide a written accounting of all funds provided to 
MAG under this Agreement, documenting MAG’s use of such funds.  If an audit is requested by the 
majority of the Rio Advisory Board, the Parties will equally share the costs of any audit unless such audit 
reveals a material discrepancy on the part of MAG in which case MAG shall be responsible for such costs. 

4.7 The Position will be recruited by MAG, which will be responsible for conducting the 
search, interviewing candidates and onboarding the RIO Ambassador to UWFP, all in direct consultation 
with the Rio Advisory Board which will participate in the search and interviews.  MAG will not offer the 
Position to a candidate without the prior consent of a majority of the Rio Advisory Board. 

5. RIO ADVISORY BOARD 

5.1 The Parties shall establish the Rio Advisory Board, which will provide direction to the 
individual occupying the Position.  The Rio Advisory Board will be composed of one (1) representative 
selected by each Party.  Each Party reserves the right to substitute a different representative at its 
discretion at any time and shall provide reasonable notice to the other Parties if such a substitution occurs.  



4 
 

The representative of each Party will serve as a primary point of contact, managing communication to 
other Parties, the individual occupying the Position, and other stakeholders for matters related to UWFP.  
In addition, the representative of each Party will vote on matters requiring the Rio Advisory Board’s 
approval. 

5.2 The Rio Advisory Board may establish schedules for regular meetings and a process for 
minutes, reports, methods and manner for review of activities undertaken by the individual occupying the 
Position.  The Rio Advisory Board will recommend annual performance metrics for the Position to be 
adopted by MAG at its discretion.  The Rio Advisory Board will establish a subcommittee responsible for 
determining whether the RIO Ambassador to UWFP is satisfactorily performing the duties of the Position 
set forth in Exhibit A and meeting the established performance metrics.  

5.3 The Rio Advisory Board will determine the number and frequency of reports and 
assessments to be delivered to the Board by the individual occupying the Position.  The Parties will update 
and communicate changing needs and priorities based on such reports and assessments.  

5.4 The Rio Advisory Board may make changes to Exhibit B from time to time during the Term 
of this Agreement if such changes are unanimously agreed to.   

6. TERM AND TERMINATION 

6.1 This Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and continue for a period of four years 
(the “Initial Term”).  Thereafter, this Agreement may be renewed and updated, subject to available 
funding support and mutual written agreement of the Parties for additional two-year terms (each a 
“Renewal Term”).  The Initial Term, together with any Renewal Term(s), is referred to in this Agreement 
as the “Term”.   

6.2 In the event of termination of the UWFP program, or any substantive change affecting 
RIO participation in the UWFP program, the Parties will work together to effect an orderly transition 
and/or wind-down of any collaborative activities then in process under this Agreement.   

6.3 The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 38-511.   

7. DISPUTE RESOLUTION   

7.1 If the Parties disagree about the responsibilities, duties, time allocation and/or 
performance of the individual occupying the Position, the Parties will work together within the framework 
of the Rio Advisory Board, to resolve the disagreement.  If any Party desires to have a more formal conflict 
resolution, then the Parties will engage in a conflict resolution process and document the resolution in 
writing.  If the conflict resolution process results in a written agreement by a majority of Parties to 
terminate the Agreement, then the termination will be effective on a day mutually agreed by the Parties.  
The Parties will continue to equally contribute to the Total Compensation through the conclusion (or 
earlier termination) of the engagement agreement related to the Position. 

7.2 As required by A.R.S. § 12-1518, the Parties agree to make use of arbitration in disputes 
that are subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-133. 



5 
 

7.3 Nothing in this Agreement, or any current or future schedule, attachment, exhibit, 
amendment, or addenda is intended to be or shall be construed as a waiver of the SRP-MIC sovereign 
immunity, or any other immunity otherwise available to any of the governmental Parties, except as 
provided in this Section 7.  Neither the SRP-MIC limited waiver of sovereign immunity, nor the limited 
waiver of any other immunity available to any of the governmental Parties, extends to any person or entity 
other than the Parties, or to any claims for punitive damages. 

8. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

8.1 Each Party is an independent contractor and is independent of each other Party.  This 
Agreement does not create an employment relationship, partnership, joint venture or agency relationship 
of any kind among the Parties.  This Agreement does not create any fiduciary or other obligation among 
the Parties, except for those obligations expressly and specifically set forth in this Agreement.  No Party 
will have any right, power or authority under this Agreement to act as a legal representative of any other 
Party.  No Party will have any right or authority to bind or obligate the others or make any representation 
or warranty on behalf of the others.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to indicate, suggest or 
make the individual occupying the Position the employee, contractor or agent of any Party other than 
MAG, which shall engage the individual occupying the Position. 

8.2 The Parties will highlight their collaborative relationship in all communications related to 
the subject matter of this Agreement and will promote such relationship as part of their outreach and 
public relations efforts.  No Party will issue a press release, public statement, advertisement or 
announcement regarding this Agreement or the Position without the prior input and consent of the other 
Parties. 

8.3 No Party will use any names, service marks, trademarks, trade names, logos or other 
identifying names, domain names or identifying marks of any other Party (“Marks”) without the prior 
written permission of the Party that owns the Marks in each instance.  Use of any Party’s Marks must 
comply with the owning Party’s requirements, including using the “®” indication of a registered trademark 
where applicable. 

8.4 Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, each Party will be responsible 
for its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the performance of its duties and obligations. 

8.5 With the exception of payment obligations, no Party will be in default hereunder by 
reason of its delay in performing or failure to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement if such 
delay or failure is caused by or results from acts of terrorism, strikes, acts of God or the public enemy, 
riots, epidemics or pandemics, mass health issues or disease, quarantine restrictions, interference by civil 
or military authorities, or other emergencies that may disrupt a Party’s operations. 

8.6 The Parties’ payment obligations are subject to the appropriation and budgeting of funds 
for that purpose during the then-current fiscal year.  Obligations under any agreement are current 
expenses subject to the “budget law” and the unfettered legislative discretion of each Party’s governing 
body concerning budgeted purposes and appropriation of funds.  The Parties agree that no Party has any 
obligation to budget or appropriate funds for payment in any budget in any fiscal year other than the fiscal 
year in which an agreement is executed and delivered. 



6 
 

8.7 The Parties will comply with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, regulations, and 
executive orders governing equal employment opportunity, immigration, and nondiscrimination, 
including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

8.8 To the extent required by A.R.S. § 35-214, each Party will retain all records relating to this 
Agreement and make those records available at all reasonable times for inspection and audit by each 
other Party or the Auditor General of the State of Arizona during the Term of this Agreement and for a 
period of five years after the completion of this Agreement. 

8.9 This Agreement may be executed by the Parties in any number of separate counterparts, 
each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, and all such counterparts shall 
together constitute one original document.  The Parties may evidence execution of this Agreement by 
means of photocopy, facsimile, or other electronic means, copies of which shall have the same effect for 
all purposes as a signed original. 

8.10 This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the 
subject matter and supersedes all previous representations, written or oral, with respect to the subject 
matter of this Agreement.  Except as provided in Section 5.4, this Agreement may not be modified or 
amended except by a written document signed by authorized representatives of each Party. 

9. JOINDER 

The Parties acknowledge that other parties, including without limitation, municipalities, agencies, 
counties or other entities (“Joining Party”), may desire to participate in this Agreement.  If a Joining Party 
desires to become a Party, the Joining Party may do so with the consent of the Rio Advisory Board and 
after execution of a joinder agreement in a form satisfactory to the Rio Advisory Board, a copy of which 
joinder agreement will be circulated to all the existing Parties.  Any Joining Party that becomes a Party to 
this Agreement will be subject to all of the obligations herein, including the funding obligations of Section 
4. 

[Signatures on next page.] 

  



7 
 

This Intergovernmental Agreement / Memorandum of Understanding is signed and delivered by 
authorized representatives of the Parties effective as of the Effective Date. 

The Arizona Board of Regents for and on behalf Approved as to Form 
of Arizona State University 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        Legal Counsel:       
 

 

City of Avondale     Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 

 

City of Buckeye      Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 

 

City of Goodyear     Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 



8 
 

City of Mesa      Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 

 

City of Phoenix      Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 

 

City of Tempe      Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        City Attorney:       
 

 

Maricopa County, Arizona    Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        County Attorney:      
 

 



9 
 

Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community  Approved as to Form 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        Legal Counsel:       
 

 

Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement  Approved as to Form 
And Power District 

 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        SRP Attorney:       
 

 

JOINED AS A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 

Maricopa Association of Governments   Approved as to Form 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

Date:        Legal Counsel:       

  



10 
 

EXHIBIT A 

JOB DESCRIPTION: 

RIO REIMAGINED AMBASSADOR TO THE URBAN WATERS FEDERAL PARTNERSHIP 

Full-time consultant (engaged as an independent contractor), representing the regional stakeholders 
engaged in the Rio Reimagined partnership, with direct responsibility to the Urban Waters Federal 
Partnership (UWFP) program.  Responsibilities include: 

 Promote/advocate Rio Reimagined regional strategy with Urban Waters program staff, federal 
agencies, non-profits, federal delegation, etc.   

 Promote the benefits and opportunities within the UWFP and its Urban Waters Learning Network 
to local RIO stakeholders and partners 

 Serve as the primary liaison/program manager to the UWFP on behalf of the local regional Rio 
Reimagined partnership.  May include travel to national Urban Waters conferences and events. 

 Identify funding opportunities, convene local stakeholders to apply for opportunities 

 Connect public, private, and non-profit tools & resources to the needs of Rio Reimagined in 
collaboration with the local partnership.   

 Identify and assist in the preparation of grant applications that benefit the Rio Reimagined region 
and support projects within the work plan.   

 Convene Rio Reimagined meetings with proactive, inclusive outreach to ensure all partners and 
community-based organizations have a seat at the table.  May include travel and in-person field 
meetings, events and conferences.   

 Report on the progress, value, and outcomes of the Rio Reimagined partnership, including success 
stories, barriers, and best practices.   

 Identify opportunities to improve and expand the regional Rio Reimagined partnership by 
engaging with participating organizations and recruiting new partners.   

 Report progress on Rio Reimagined work plan, on agreed-upon frequency, to Rio Advisory Board. 

 Coordinate with the other Urban Waters locations to identify best practices to further the 
implementation of priority projects and advance the overall goals and objectives of the local 
partnership.  

 Implement, refine, and update the annual partnership workplan as required by UWFP.   

Recommended Characteristics/Roles  

• Ability to relate, listen, work with wide variety of stakeholders and build trust 

• Ability to demonstrate neutrality and build bridges among stakeholders 

• Familiarity with federal agencies, legislative/policy process   

• Organizational skill set to create structure (work groups) for planning and collaboration 

• Experience in researching and writing grant proposals/applications 



11 
 

• Serve as a liaison to various partner organizations in region and assist in connecting RIO vision to 
complementary initiatives 

• Local knowledge and relationships/network   

Qualifications 

 Master’s Degree in Urban Planning or a closely related degree  

 Minimum of 5 years of progressive, professional working experience in urban planning, or a 
related field such as economics, economic development, urban design, architecture, engineering, 
environmental design, geography, political science or public administration 

 Experience working with diverse stakeholders, including government officials and 
administrations, in the areas of urban design, master planning and public open space 
transformation 

 Experience with federal agencies as well as legislative policy and process  

 Experience in research, strategy, and preparation of grant proposals or applications 

 Demonstrated understanding of urban planning related processes typical within cities (land use 
policy, real estate development processes, sustainability, environmental sciences, green 
infrastructure, economic development, social and environmental justice, etc.) 

 Ability to diagnose urban planning proposals and projects as well as provide recommendations 
for both large and small intervention to improve urban resilience and river and community 
revitalization  

 Excellent project management skills with the ability to independently coordinate and lead 
multiple tasks simultaneously with a focus on quality and metrics  

 Experience working in dynamic, impact orientated environments and a proven track record in 
meeting deadlines 

 Track record of creating data driven reports, memos and presentations; with a sharp eye for detail 

 Excellent written and oral communication skills showcasing a capacity to synthesize information 
and develop compelling narratives 

 Creative problem-solving skills; including an ability to grasp key issues and make 
recommendations for improvements 

 

 

 

  



12 
 

EXHIBIT B 

REIMBURSEMENT BUDGET FOR RIO AMBASSADOR TO UWFP 

The RIO Ambassador to the UWFP will be engaged by MAG, which will be solely responsible for 
compensating the Ambassador and providing administrative support.  MAG will engage the Ambassador 
as an independent contractor with no benefits.   

In recognition of the regional benefits the Ambassador will provide, each Party will make an equal, annual 
contribution to MAG to partially reimburse MAG for the cost of the Ambassador’s Total Compensation.  
During the Term of this Agreement, a $15,000 annual contribution will be made by each of the following 
Parties: 

City of Avondale 

City of Buckeye 

City of Goodyear 

City of Mesa  

City of Phoenix 

City of Tempe 

Maricopa County 

Salt River Pima Maricopa Indian Community 

Salt River Project 

Arizona State University 

 

MAG will serve as a fiscal agent to receive and process Total Compensation funding, as well as federal or 
other funding sources in support of the Ambassador as needed or recommended by the Rio Advisory 
Board.  If annual contributions from the Parties and other funding for the RIO Ambassador exceed the 
Total Compensation, MAG will issue a credit to the Parties fairly and equitably.  Each Party may elect to 
use the credit to reduce its annual contribution or receive a refund.  If a refund is requested, MAG will 
issue the refund within 90 days of receiving a written request for such refund.   



ITEM #: 5. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1352

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: FINAL PLAT FOR CAMELBACK CENTER AT PV303

 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Marty Crossland, Interim Deputy Director of

Development Engineering

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Martin Hazine, Hunter Engineering

SUMMARY
A Final Plat subdividing approximately 138 acres into 3 lots at the intersection of W.
Camelback Road and N. Pebble Creek Parkway.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Final Plat for Camelback Center at PV303. (Marty Crossland, Interim Deputy
Director of Development Engineering)

STIPULATIONS
1. Any technical corrections to this final plat required by the City Engineer or his designee shall
be made prior to the recordation of the Final Plat;
2. Prior to recordation of the Final Plat, documentation acceptable to the City Attorney or
his/her designee shall be provided demonstrating that the party executing the final plat is
authorized to do so.
3. Prior to recordation of the Final Plat, Liberty Utilities shall sign the Final Plat stating assured
water supply has been granted from Arizona Department of Water Resources.
4. No Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of
Completion shall be is issued for any structure within the Final Plat for Camelback Center at
PV303 until a portion of the existing drainage easement adjacent to Camelback Road located
within the property included within the Final Plat as approved on the Improvement Plans,
which easement is recorded in the Official Records of Maricopa County as Instrument No.
2005-591745, has been terminated.
5. Prior to issuance of any construction permit within Camelback Road, all property within the
south half of Camelback Road along the frontage of the property included in this Final Plat but
outside the boundary of the final plat shall be conveyed to the City, in fee, through a special
warranty deed or any other form acceptable to the City Attorney or his designee;
6. Prior to recordation of the Final Plat, Owner is responsible for the payment for a
proportionate share of the costs for adjacent traffic signals.  The payment shall be based on
the actual cost of the traffic signal if it has been constructed or if the payment is required before
the signal is constructed it shall be based on the estimated cost of the traffic signal as



determined by the City Engineer or designee. Owner’s traffic signal obligations are as
follows:   

a.25% at Sarival Ave and Camelback Rd.

FISCAL IMPACT
Although a fiscal impact analysis has not been conducted on this specific project, all new
development will have an ongoing fiscal impact on the City. The development is responsible
for construction of all infrastructure necessary to serve the site and will generate one-time
revenue for the City through payment of permits, construction sales tax and development
impact fees. Longer term fiscal impacts include increased demands for municipal services, the
costs of which may or may not be offset by increased property values/tax levies, city sales tax,
state shared revenues and the increased demand for commercial and retail development. Any
areas that will be maintained by the city are constructed by the developer and then conveyed
to the city two years after construction.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The subject property is a part of the PV303 PAD Amendment for Camelback Center. The
PV303 PAD was last amended on August 18, 2019, with City Council adoption of Ordinance
No. 2019-1448.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The proposed subdivision is consistent with the General Plan and will not adversely impact the
surrounding area. Further, the proposed subdivision is consistent with the technical
requirements of the city’s subdivision regulations and engineering standards, and provides for
the orderly development of the property by identifying the required infrastructure needed to
serve the development.

Attachments
Aerial Photo 
Final Plat 



City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE,
Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA, City of Goodyear

C
it

y 
o

f 
G

o
o

d
ye

ar

Camelback Center at PV303Description:

City of GoodyearName of Map:

lhopp
Polygonal Line



H
U

N
T

E
R

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R
C

A
M

E
L

B
A

C
K

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
T

 P
V

3
�

3

1 �

FINAL PLAT FOR
CAMELBACK CENTER AT PV3�3

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

LAND SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION:

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOT AREAS:

SHEET INDE;:

DEDICATION:

’

”  

“ ” 

NOTES:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT:
FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

APPROVALS:

OWNER: SURVEYOR:

VICINITY MAP

THIS
SITE

UTILITY NO CONFLICT CERTIFICATION

UTILITY UTILITY COMPANY
NAME OF COMPANY
REPRESENTATIVE

TELEPHONE
NUMBER

NO CONFLICT CERTIFICATION

W. CAMELBACK ROAD

W. C
HARLES BLVD

LOT 2

LOT 1

KEY MAP

LOT 3SHEET 2

SHEET 3

N
. PEBBLE C

REEK
 PK

W
Y

”

”

”

”

”

”

”

”
”

”

”

”

”

”
”

”

”



W CAMELBACK ROAD

N
 PEB

B
LE C

R
EEK

 PK
W

Y

N
 P

E
B

B
L

E
 C

R
E

E
K

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

S
A

R
IV

A
L

 A
V

E
N

U
E

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

Δ

H
U

N
T

E
R

2

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

MATCH LINE    SEE SHEET 3

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R
C

A
M

E
L

B
A

C
K

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
T

 P
V

3
�

3

�



N
 PEB

B
LE C

R
EEK

 PA
R

K
W

A
Y

W CHARLES BLVD.

N
 159TH

 A
V

E.

Δ

S
A

R
IV

A
L

 A
V

E
N

U
E

W. S
ELLS D

R.

LOT 2

H
U

N
T

E
R

� �

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

MATCH LINE    SEE SHEET 2

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R
C

A
M

E
L

B
A

C
K

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
T

 P
V

�
�

�

LE*END:



N
 PEB

B
LE C

R
EEK

 PA
R

K
W

A
Y

W. S
ELLS D

R.

N
 PEB

B
LE C

R
EEK

 PK
W

Y

N
 PEB

B
LE C

R
EEK

 PK
W

Y

H
U

N
T

E
R

� �

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

F
IN

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R
C

A
M

E
L

B
A

C
K

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
T

 P
9

�
�

�

SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'A'

SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'B'

R/W DEDICATION DETAIL 'E'

SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'H'SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'G'SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'F'SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'E'

SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'D'

SIDEWALK EASEMENT DETAIL 'C'

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
DETAIL 'I'

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
DETAIL 'J'



ITEM #: 6. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1357

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

FOUR FY2023 CIP PROJECTS
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Hugh Bigalk, P.E., City Traffic Engineer

SUMMARY
Request City Council approve expenditures up to $615,000 for four FY2023 CIP Construction
Projects to provide additional capacity at four existing intersections, for traffic optimization.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve expenditures in the amount of $615,000 to complete four FY2023 CIP Construction
Projects - #42054, #42055, #42057, and #42059. (Hugh Bigalk, P.E., City Traffic Engineer)

FISCAL IMPACT
The expenditures will occur across four projects as listed below. The projects are included in
the approved budget.
  

Project Total
42054: Estrella Parkway - Illini to Elwood $173,920
42055: Estrella Parkway at Roosevelt
Street $189,095

42057: Litchfield Road at McDowell Road $163,805
42059: PebbleCreek Parkway at Virginia
Avenue $88,180

Total $615,000

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
These four projects were developed and approved as part of the FY2023-2027 CIP process in
an effort to provide additional capacity at existing intersections, for traffic optimization.  These
projects are making minor modifications to existing conditions. In addition, these projects are
anticipated to be completed by the end of FY2023 through existing city contracts.

STAFF ANALYSIS
These projects will make modifications to existing conditions at four intersections.  The four



These projects will make modifications to existing conditions at four intersections.  The four
projects will make the following improvements:

42054 – Estrella Parkway – Illini Street to Bullard Avenue: Project will construct a northbound
right turn, which will allow three northbound through lanes on Estrella Parkway from MC 85 to
Bullard Avenue.  This will eliminate a scalloped street condition.

42055 – Estrella Parkway at Roosevelt Street: This project will construct additional pavement
to extend the existing northbound left turn lane and the improvements will add additional
vehicle storage capacity.  This intersection will also be changed to a dual northbound and dual
southbound left turn as part of the Estrella Commons improvements by the developer of
Estrella Commons.

42057 – Litchfield Road at McDowell Road: This project will construct additional pavement to
extend the existing westbound left turn lane and the improvements will add additional left turn
lane storage capacity.

42059 – PebbleCreek Parkway at Virginia Avenue: This project will correct the existing
transition to the southbound left turn lane.  The existing curb from the southbound through
lane to the left turn lane will be modified to provide a smoother transition.



ITEM #: 7. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1358

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 10-11
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Sarah Chilton, Deputy City Attorney

SUMMARY
The Third Amendment to the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11 amends
terms of the existing agreement to allow the issuance of a building permit for the second
building being constructed on Microsoft’s PHX 10-11 Site (PHX 11) and addresses the
infrastructure needs for the third building to be constructed on the site.

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2295 APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 10-11; AUTHORIZING
AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE THIRD AMENDMENT;
PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR FUTURE ACTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. (Sarah Chilton, Deputy City Attorney)

FISCAL IMPACT
The continued development of the PHX 10-11 Site will have an ongoing fiscal impact on the
city. The Third Amendment to the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11
creates a fiscal impact in terms of expenditures required of the City in that Microsoft is to
up-front funds for the expansion of the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant for
the portion of the expansion needed to generate the treatment capacity needed to serve the
PHX 10-11 site at full build-out. Although Microsoft is providing its proportionate share of the
cost of the expansion, the city is responsible for expanding the facility and funding the
remainder of the costs of the expansion. The continued development of the PHX 10-11 site will
generate one-time revenue for the city through construction sales tax and development impact
fees for the additional data centers and public infrastructure Microsoft will be constructing.
Longer-term fiscal impacts include increased demands for municipal services, the costs of
which may or may not be offset by increased property values/tax levies, city sales tax, and
state-shared revenues.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
In 2018, Microsoft acquired approximately 279 acres, generally located between the north side



In 2018, Microsoft acquired approximately 279 acres, generally located between the north side
of Broadway Road and the south side of MC-85 and extending from east of Bullard Avenue to
west of Litchfield Road (the “PHX 10-11 Site”). Since this acquisition, Council has considered
numerous requests related to Microsoft’s plans to develop the PHX 10-11 Site for use as data
centers. These requests include: (i) the adoption of Ordinance 2018-1418 by Council on
December 17, 2018 rezoning the PHX 10-11 Site; (ii) the adoption of Ordinance 2019-1420 by
Council on January 14, 2018 annexing a section of Broadway Road adjacent the PHX 10-11
Site to facilitate the construction of Broadway Road improvements when the PHX 10-11 Site
develops; (iii) the adoption of Resolution 2019-1931 on January 14, 2019 and of Resolution
2019-1939 on February 25, 2019 that will allow for the consolidation of the PHX 10-11 Site
into lots consistent with Microsoft’s development plans; (iv) the adoption of Resolution
2019-1937 by Council on February 11, 2019 authorizing the issuance of an at-risk grading
permit; (v) the adoption of Resolution 2019-1942 by Council on February 25, 2019 and
Resolution 2019-1957 being presented to Council as a separate item on February 22, 2019,
which establish a self-certification process for use by Microsoft in the development of the PHX
10-11 Site; (vi) the adoption of Resolution 2019-1959 approving the Infrastructure
Development Agreement for Project 10-11; (vii) the adoption of Resolution 2020-2077
approving the First Amendment to the Infrastructure Agreement for Project 10-11; (viii) and the
adoption of 2021-2152, approving the Second Amendment to the Infrastructure Agreement for
Project 10-11.  Although this item has not been previously presented to the Council, this
amendment is consistent with many of these earlier actions that identified Microsoft’s general
obligation to construct on-site and off-site infrastructure needed to serve Microsoft’s property
and to acquire and convey to the City all land necessary for such infrastructure.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Under the terms of the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11 (the “PHX
10-11 IDA”), Microsoft is responsible for the design and construction of all infrastructure, within
the boundaries of the PHX 10-11 Site and outside the boundaries of the PHX 10-11 Site as
reasonably determined by the City to be both in accordance with the duly-adopted
Development Regulations and needed to support the development of the PHX 10-11 Site and
to allow the City to provide City services to the PHX 10-11 Site. The identification of the public
infrastructure needed was to be guided by engineering studies paid for by Microsoft.

When Microsoft acquired the PHX 10-11 Site, its original intent was to develop five (5) data
centers in phases. Each of the five (5) data centers would use direct evaporative cooling
(water-cooled, each of which would require no more than, 1 MGD (million gallons per day) of
water with a maximum amount of 5 MGD of water to be delivered to serve the PHX 10-11
Site. The cooling water or industrial discharge was to be treated to a level that it could be used
as a raw water source and delivered through a dedicated raw water line to the City’s surface
water treatment plant to be used as a source for potable water. Domestic sewage was to be
delivered to the wastewater treatment plant to the city’s wastewater treatment plant through an
existing sewer transmission line located within Broadway Road. The existing sewer
transmission line was developed and sized to serve adjacent properties as they developed.

Phase One Development (PHX 10)

Until the raw water line was constructed, Owner was allowed to temporarily discharge the
industrial discharge water from the Phase One Development (“PHX 10”) through an existing
transmission line to the City’s wastewater treatment plant.  The industrial discharge that was to
be delivered to the City’s wastewater treatment plant had to comply with applicable regulatory
standards and the maximum level of total dissolved solids (“TDS”) in the industrial discharge



delivered to the wastewater treatment plant was 1400 mg/L.  Microsoft subsequently
abandoned plans to deliver treated industrial discharge to the City’s surface water treatment
plant to be used as a source for potable water.  Microsoft’s current plans call for the industrial
discharges to be delivered to the 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Phase Two Development (PHX 11)

When Microsoft sought a building permit for a second data center (the Phase Two
Development or PHX 11), it sought permission to temporarily deliver industrial discharge from
PHX 11 to the city’s wastewater treatment plant through the existing transmission line. 
Because there was existing capacity in the line, the PHX 10-11 IDA was amended to allow
Microsoft to temporarily discharge no more than 500,000 gallons per day (GPD) of industrial
discharge and domestic sewage generated by PHX 10 and PHX 11 into the existing
transmission line to be delivered to the city’s wastewater treatment plant.  The maximum
amount of TDS allowed was 1400 mg/L [1], and Microsoft was to construct Storage
Improvements and a Discharge Control System to ensure that no more than 500,000
GPD was discharged into the existing transmission line.   The treatment facilities required to
treat the industrial discharge, so it did not exceed the maximum level of TDS allowed, the
Storage Improvements and the Discharge Control System were to be completed prior to the
issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or Permanent Certificate of Occupancy for
PHX 11.

The construction of PHX 11 is almost complete, and Microsoft is seeking a permanent
certificate of occupancy.  However, Microsoft has not completed the construction of the
improvements that would limit the level of TDS in the discharges from the Phase Two
Development that would be discharged into the existing transmission line to the city’s
wastewater treatment plant to 1400 mg/L nor did they construct the Discharge Control System
or Storage Improvements, all of which are conditions of temporary certificates of occupancy
and permanent certificates of occupancy being issued for PHX 11. [2]  In addition, Microsoft is
seeking a building permit for the Phase Three Development (PHX 12).  City staff and
Microsoft’s representatives have been working on a solution that would allow Microsoft to
obtain a certificate of occupancy for PHX 12 and to continue developing the PHX 10-11 Site. 

Phase Three Development (PHX 12)

The continued development of the PHX 10-11 Site presents certain challenges that have
resulted in changes in its plans for the development of the PHX 10-11 Site and the
infrastructure needed to support the future development.  The first challenge is the lack of
treatment capacity at the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Microsoft has
effectively abandoned its original plan to return treated industrial discharges from its
operations to be used as a raw water source.  Industrial discharges will be delivered to the
wastewater treatment plant.  At this point, there is no additional capacity available to at the
city’s wastewater treatment plant to accept industrial discharges from Microsoft’s operations in
excess of the 500,000 GPD currently allowed.  

The second challenge concerns the delivery of the industrial discharges to the city’s
wastewater treatment plant.   Currently, industrial discharges are being delivered to the city’s
wastewater treatment plant through the existing transmission line in Broadway Road.  This
transmission line was designed and sized to support development adjacent to the line and was
never intended to take industrial discharges from Microsoft’s operations.  Instead, Microsoft
was to treat industrial discharges and deliver the treated discharges for use as a raw water



source for potable water through a dedicated raw water line.  Because of development that is
occurring within properties adjacent to the existing transmission line, the capacity of that line
has to be freed up to support this new development as it comes online.

The third challenge concerns Microsoft’s operational needs. For operational efficiencies,
Microsoft has to recirculate water used for cooling at least two times.  Roughly, two
circulations will double the level of TDS in the industrial discharge.  Thus, if the level of TDS in
the water delivered to the PHX 10-11 site has 700 mg/L of TDS, two circulations will result in
an industrial discharge of 1400 mg/L of TDS.  The problem occurs when the level of TDS in
the incoming water exceeds 700 mg/L of TDS. 

In considering the city’s interests and Microsoft’s interests, the parties reached an agreement
on terms for the third amendment to the PHX 10-11 IDA.  The third amendment includes the
following terms: 
1. All data centers developed on the PHX 10-11 Site after PHX 12 will be air cooled

2. Microsoft will provide an updated engineering study to determine the annual water demand
for the PHX 10-11 Site at full build-out, all water and wastewater infrastructure needed to
support the city’s delivery of water and wastewater services to the PHX 10-11 Site and full
build-out and during the interim solution based on the assumption that only PHX 10, PHX 11
and PHX 12 will be water cooled and that the operations of those data centers will be limited
to two (2) cycles of recirculation. 

3. By August 31, 2024, Microsoft will have completed the construction of a dedicated
discharge line to deliver industrial discharges generated from all data centers constructed on
the PHX 10-11 Site at full-buildout to the wastewater treatment plant.

4. Once the dedicated discharge line is completed all industrial discharges from the operations
on the PHX 10-11 Site being delivered to the wastewater treatment plant, including those
discharges that are being delivered on a temporary basis through the existing transmission
line in Broadway Road, will be delivered through the dedicated discharge line.

5. Microsoft will make a $36 million in-lieu payment towards the cost of an expansion of the
wastewater treatment plant for the treatment capacity that will be needed to treat all discharges
(industrial discharges and domestic sewage) generated by the operations on the PHX 10-11
Site at full build-out.  This payment assumes the cost of an expansion that will result in an
additional 3 MGD of treatment capacity will cost $90 million and Microsoft will require 1.2
MGD of treatment capacity at full build-out.  This amount will be adjusted if the assumptions
change.

6. The $36 million in-lieu payment is in-lieu of wastewater impact fees, which currently do not
contemplate the capacity required by Microsoft’s operations.  Accordingly, the city will not be
charging wastewater development impact fees for development within the PHX 10-11 Site and
will be returning those that were previously collected.

7. The city will be responsible for expanding the wastewater treatment plant and providing
treatment capacity for which Microsoft has made an in-lieu payment.

8. Once the wastewater treatment plant is expanded, Microsoft, all industrial discharges from
the operations on the PHX 10-11 Site delivered to the city’s wastewater treatment plant will
have a maximum level of TDS of 1400 mg/L or double the TDS level of the incoming water



from the city.

9. Microsoft will have to construct any additional water lines that are identified in the updated
engineering study as being needed for the delivery of water supplies to the PHX 10-11 Site at
full buildout.

10. Microsoft will be responsible for any water supplies required to serve the water supply in
excess of the Type 1 Grandfathered Non-Irrigation water right owned by Microsoft and which
is currently being used to serve PHX 10, but which appears to be sufficient to serve PHX 10,
PHX 11 and PHX 12.

11. Microsoft will deposit $5 milliion with the city as financial assurance toward the cost of the
dedicated discharge line and any additional water lines Microsoft has to construct.  Once the
infrastructure has been designed and an engineer’s estimate of the cost of the infrastructure
has been provided, an escrow in the amount of the estimated cost of the infrastructure will be
established, with Microsoft funding any shortfall, which can be used to pay for the
infrastructure as the infrastructure is completed.

12. Microsoft will deposit $800,000 with the city, which the city will use to pay for the services
of a person the city will retain to serve as the city’s designated representative to coordinate
and facilitate the development of the PHX 10-11 Site and the PHX 70 Site. 

13. The Third Amendment provides for a temporary solution that will allow a permanent
certificate of occupancy to be issued for PHX 11 that includes the following:
a. Until the earlier of August 31, 2024 or the date the dedicated discharge line is completed,
Microsoft will be allowed to discharge industrial discharges through the existing transmission
line.  If the dedicated discharge line is not constructed by August 31, 2024, Microsoft will be
required to store all industrial discharges on-site.

b. Until the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant has been expanded, Microsoft
shall be allowed to deliver to the wastewater treatment plant up to 500,000 GPD of discharges
(industrial discharges and domestic sewage) with a maximum level of TDS of 2853 mg/L. 

c. Until the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant has been expanded, Microsoft
will have to construct improvements required to store all discharges in excess of 500,000 GPD
on-site and will have to store discharges in excess of 500,000 GPD within such improvements.

The terms of the proposed amendment are consistent with the general intent of the
infrastructure development for Project 10-11 which requires Microsoft to construct
infrastructure improvements needed for the city to provide utility services to the property.
Accordingly, staff supports its adoption.  
  

[1] Higher levels of TDS create problems for the operations of the wastewater treatment plant. 
Because of this, City staff is working on its own “brine solution” to address TDS levels in the
city’s discharges to the wastewater treatment plant that result from the development of potable
water.
[2] These improvements were not completed because there were discussions about Microsoft
participating in the brine solution that the city was working on, but these discussions never
materialized into an agreement because the city has not finalized a brine solution. 



Attachments
Resolution w-Ex.1 Development Agreement 



Resolution No. 2023-2295 
Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2295 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 10-11; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE THIRD AMENDMENT; PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION 
FOR FUTURE ACTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
… 
WHEREAS, in 2018, Microsoft acquired approximately 279 acres of real property within the City 
of Goodyear generally located between the north side of Broadway Road and the south side of 
MC-85 and extending from east of Bullard Avenue to west of Litchfield Road that it is developing 
under the name Project 10-11 (the "Property"); and 

 
WHEREAS, Microsoft is responsible for the design and construction of all public infrastructure, 
within the boundaries of the Property and outside the boundaries of the Property as reasonably 
determined by the city to be both in accordance with the duly-adopted Development Regulations 
and engineering studies needed to support the development of the Property and to allow the city 
to provide city services to the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, Microsoft’s plans for development of the Property have changed over time and 
instead of treating industrial discharges so it could be used as a raw water source for potable 
water production, Microsoft’s plans call for the distribution of industrial discharges to the city’s 
157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant for treatment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Microsoft and the city entered into that certain Infrastructure Development 
Agreement for Project 10-11 recorded on June 27, 2019 in the official records of Maricopa County, 
Arizona at recording number 2019-0486224 (hereinafter referred to as the “PHX 10-11 IDA”), 
which addressed certain requirements regarding the development of the Property, including 
requirements for infrastructure that were to be completed before any certificate of completion 
and/or certificate of occupancy would be issued for the First Phase Development being 
constructed on the Property (the "Phase One Improvements") and operational requirements 
regarding the level of Total Dissolved Solids (“TDS”) that could be delivered to the city’s 157th 
Wastewater Treatment Plant; and   
 
WHEREAS, Microsoft and the city entered into that certain First Amendment to Infrastructure 
Development Agreement for Project 10-11 recorded on July 14, 2020, in the official records of 
Maricopa County, Arizona at recording number 20200625939 (hereinafter referred to as the “First 
Amendment”), which modified the requirements for obtaining certificates of occupancies or 
completion for the Phase One Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, Microsoft and the city entered into that certain Second Amendment to Infrastructure 
Development Agreement for Project 10-11 recorded on April 27, 2021, in the official records of 
Maricopa County, Arizona at recording number 2021-10468656 (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Second Amendment”), which provided a temporary solution for the development of the Phase 
Two Development (PHX 11) by identifying infrastructure requirements, operational requirements 
and timing for the completion of such infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, the construction of PHX 11 is almost complete and Microsoft is seeking a 
permanent certificate of occupancy for PHX 11 and a building permit for the Phase Three 
Development (PHX 12); and 
 



Resolution No. 2023-2295 
Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, Microsoft has not completed the infrastructure improvements it was to construct as 
a condition of receiving a permanent certificate of occupancy for PHX 11; and 
 
WHEREAS, until the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant has been expanded, the 
city is not in a position to accept discharges in excess of 500,000 gpd; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Third Amendment to Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11 
modifies the conditions required for the city to issue a permanent certificate of occupancy for 
PHX 11, sets forth conditions for the issuance of a building permit for PHX12, sets forth 
conditions for the issuance of a certificate of completion, temporary certificate of occupancy and 
permanent certificate occupancy for PHX 12, provides a temporary infrastructure solution and 
temporary conditions for operations that allow for the continued development and operation of 
the PHX 10-11 Site until the city’s 157th Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant has been 
expanded, and imposes permanent operational requirements once the city’s 157th Avenue 
Wastewater Treatment Plant has been expanded.   

 
WHEREAS, the city acknowledges the development of the Property is consistent with the city’s 
general plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, Microsoft and the city intend this Third Amendment to be a Development Agreement 
within the meaning of A.R.S. § 9-500.05 that binds Microsoft and all future owners of all or any 
portion of the Property. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear find the approval of the Third 

Amendment to the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11 by 
and between Microsoft Corporation, a Washington corporation, and the city of 
Goodyear, an Arizona municipal corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by this reference, to be in the best interest 
of the City of Goodyear, and hereby approve the Third Amendment to the 
Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11.    
 

SECTION 2. The City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
the Third Amendment to the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 
10-11. 

  
SECTION 3. The City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized and directed to take any 

and all actions and to execute all the documents necessary to carry out the intent 
of this Resolution and the terms of the Third Amendment of the Infrastructure 
Development Agreement for Project 10-11 (the “Third Amendment”), including 
any amendment to the Well Sharing and/or Water Wheeling Agreements 
determined by the City Attorney or designee as being needed to comply with the 
terms of the Third Amendment as approved by the City Attorney or designee.   
 

SECTION 4. Unless referred to the voter as provided by law, Resolution 2023-2295 shall be 
effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Goodyear. 



Resolution No. 2023-2295 
Page 3 of 4 

  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2023. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 



Resolution No. 2023-2295 
Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT ‘1’ 
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 FOR PROJECT 10-11 

































































































































ITEM #: 8. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1360

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS & RELATED

EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Doug Sandstrom, Finance Director

SUMMARY
Approve budget amendments & related expenditure authority.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve budget amendments & related expenditure authority. (Doug Sandstrom, Finance
Director)

FISCAL IMPACT
Fiscal impacts are outlined in the attached report. The citywide budget total
remains unchanged within the Adopted State Expenditure Limitation Budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Budget amendments requiring City Council approval are presented, as necessary throughout
the year. The FY2023 expenditure limitation budget was adopted on June 06, 2022.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Budget transfers are permitted by Arizona Revised Statute 42-17106(B), which provides
authorization for cities and towns to exceed expenditures in a budget item after final adoption
of a city/town budget by transferring appropriations between budget items. All budget transfers
are completed within city policy established by Resolution 2020-2039. Review of budget
transfers keeps the Council and general public informed about the city's current fiscal year
revenues and expenditures.

Attachments
Budget Amendment Report 



City Council - Budget Amendments Report - FY2023 Council Agenda Date: 3/6/2023

Date Transfer 
Journal No. Reason Needed Amount Ultimate Fund(s) Affected; 

Explanation

New 
Resource/ 
Revenue

No Ultimate 
Funding 
Change

General Water 
Operating

Wastewater 
Operating

Other 
Operating 

Funds

Other  Capital 
Funds

1/24/2023 2023-07-783

Project 42060 - Traffic Signal Estrella/Centerra: Previously 
the lead times were approximately 16 weeks for CAID, 12 
weeks for Sierra and 2 weeks for Econolite. Currently, for 
the same equipment the lead times are now 25 weeks for 
CAID, 43 weeks for Sierra and 43 weeks for Econolite. 
Purchasing these long-lead items in FY2023 will help 
mitigate any delays in receiving the required traffic signal 
equipment for completing construction in FY2024. This 
request would advance $412,100 of FY24 Construction 
funding to FY23 to mitigate current traffic signal equipment 
procurement delays.

$412,100 General Fund $412,100 

2/22/2023 2023-08-629

The Ballpark will lose their free source of water near the 
beginning of March 2023. With this being an unplanned 
event, they will need additional funds to get them through 
the remainder of FY2023. Using our water rate chart on the 
city's website, we calculated it will cost ~$200k for just over 
27M gallons of water split 60/40 potable/reclaimed water.

$204,300 Special Revenue $204,300 

 1 of 1



ITEM #: 9. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1342

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: PROPOSALS TO GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR

ARIZONA REVISED STATUTE 5-601-02 12 PERCENT GAMING
DISTRIBUTION FUNDS
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Christina Panaitescu, Grants and Neighborhood
Services Supervisor

SUMMARY
The Gila River Indian Community is seeking requests for funding proposals from Arizona cities
and non-profit organizations for their 2023 State Shared Revenue grant program. Proposals
must address one or more of the following priority areas: economic development, education,
healthcare, public safety, or transportation. Responses are due no later than March 31, 2023.

RECOMMENDATION
1.    ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2023-2293, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF TWO
PUBLIC SAFETY APPLICATIONS FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE GRANT PROGRAM
FUNDS TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER
TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS RELATING TO SAID APPLICATIONS, AND
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT (IF GRANT
FUNDS ARE AWARDED), AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE THE
REQUIRED BUDGET TRANSFER (IF GRANT FUNDS ARE AWARDED).

2.    ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2023-2294, SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A
TRANSPORTATION APPLICATION BY THE SOUTHWEST VALLEY FAMILY YMCA TO THE
GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE GRANT PROGRAM
FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT AND ADMINISTER
SUBSEQUENT AWARDED FUNDS AS A PASS-THROUGH GRANT. (Christina Panaitescu,
Grants & Neighborhood Services Supervisor)

FISCAL IMPACT
If the City's applications are awarded, budget transfers will be made to accommodate
expenditures associated with the receipt of additional revenue from the Gila River Indian
Community. Goodyear projects that are not fully funded through the grant process will be
scaled back to the grant award amount, not pursued at this time, or the Department will seek
other funding opportunities.

Upon receipt of any grant funds in the case of Municipal Sponsorship, the City will act as a
financial conduit between the Gila River Indian Community and the Southwest Valley Family



YMCA and, as such, will mail a check to the Southwest Valley Family YMCA covering one
hundred percent (100%) of the funds received by the City from the Gila River Indican
Community pursuant to such application.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
In 2002, Arizona eligible voters approved Proposition 202, which implemented a new
requirement that Tribal/State Gaming Compacts must include a provision that the compacting
tribe would contribute a portion of its annual net gaming revenues (the "Annual Contribution")
for the benefit of the general public. Pursuant to Proposition 202, each tribe may determine the
recipients of 12 percent of its total annual contribution (the "State Shared Revenue grant
program").

The Gila River Indian Community has announced a request for proposals from local
governments and non-profit organizations for the distribution of the fiscal year 2023 payments.
Responses are due via email no later than March 31, 2023.

According to the Goodyear Grant Policy, adopted by Council in December 2020, for Goodyear
to serve as a municipal sponsor, all of the following criteria must be met:

The applicant must be: 
Legally recognized by the IRS as a tax-exempt organization; eligible to apply
In good standing with the City (e.g. current business license, etc. as applicable);
Be located in the City of Goodyear and/or the proposed project must directly serve City of
Goodyear residents.

And, the application must: 
Meet the "public benefits" funding priorities of the Tribes.
Not be in direct competition with an application submitted by the City to the same Tribal
community during the same funding cycle.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Application interest was solicited from city department directors. Two prospective application
projects emerged: 

The Prevention Division in the Fire Department is seeking funds to purchase the
Bullseye Digital Fire Extinguisher Training System to improve and enhance fire
extinguisher training. ($35,000)

1.

The Police Department is seeking funds to add a drone with increased battery life and
range (zoom and clarity). ($151,000)

2.

A representative from the Gila River Indian Community Office of Special Funding was
consulted and indicated that nothing would prohibit both public safety applications from being
selected for funding.

The Southwest Valley Family YMCA request meets all the city grant policy criteria for
Municipal Sponsorship.

Funded applications will be notified in August 2023. Funds will be available on or before
October 25, 2023.



Attachments
Resolution for City Applications 
Resolution for Municipal Sponsorship 



Resolution No. 2023-2293 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2293 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF TWO PUBLIC SAFETY 
APPLICATIONS FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS TO THE GILA 
RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS RELATING TO SAID APPLICATIONS, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT (IF GRANT FUNDS ARE 
AWARDED), AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE THE REQUIRED 
BUDGET TRANSFER (IF GRANT FUNDS ARE AWARDED). 
… 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to apply for Gila River Indian Community State Shared 
Revenue grant funds for public safety equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prevention Division in the Fire Department is seeking funds to purchase the 
Bullseye Digital Fire Extinguisher Training System to improve and enhance fire extinguisher 
training ($35,000); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Police Department is seeking funds to add a drone with increased battery life 
an range ($151,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, both projects qualify as eligible projects under the State Shared Revenue Grant 
Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no match requirement for this application; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Manager, or her designee, is hereby authorized to submit two 
applications to the Gila River Indian Community for the State Shared Revenue 
Grant program for public safety equipment for a total amount not to exceed 
$186,000. 
 

SECTION 2. If the grant application is awarded, the City will enter into a Grant Agreement with 
the Gila River Indian Community to implement the projects or programs that have 
been approved by the Gila River Indian Community. 
 

SECTION 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all documents relating to these 
applications and any grant offer resulting from such applications. 
 

SECTION 4. If grant funds are awarded to the City of Goodyear, the City Council hereby 
approves necessary budget transfers in the amount of the awarded funds. 
 

 



Resolution No. 2023-2293 
Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a _______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 



Resolution No. 2023-2294 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2294 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A TRANSPORTATION 
APPLICATION BY THE SOUTHWEST VALLEY FAMILY YMCA TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN 
COMMUNITY FOR STATE SHARED REVENUE GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT AND ADMINISTER SUBSEQUENT AWARDED 
FUNDS AS A PASS-THROUGH GRANT. 
… 
WHEREAS, Arizona’s Indian Gaming Compact provides that an Indian Tribe make twelve 
percent (12%) of its net annual State contribution to cities, towns or counties for government 
services that benefit the general public; and 
 
WHEREAS, private, not-for-profit organizations wishing to access Indian Gaming Funds (“State 
Shared Revenue Grant program”) to provide public benefits must secure sponsorship from a 
city, town or county before making application; and 
 
WHEREAS, this sponsorship must be expressed in a resolution passed by the local government 
sponsor; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Southwest Valley Family YMCA wishes to make application to the Gila River 
Indian Community for $25,000 annually for a total of three years to support the Outreach 
Program for Aging Seniors (YOPAS) program in Goodyear; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council supports this grant request for funding to serve the residents of our 
community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant and the application meet all of the criteria established by the 
Goodyear Municipal Sponsorship policy; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council approves and authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to 

accept awarded State Shared Revenue Grant program funds and for the City 
of Goodyear to act as a pass-through agency for distribution of the Gaming 
Funds directly to the Southwest Valley YMCA. 
 

SECTION 2. Upon receipt of any grant funds from the Gila River Indian Community pursuant 
to a grant application on behalf of the Southwest Valley YMCA, City staff is 
directed to mail a check to the Southwest Valley YMCA covering one hundred 
percent (100%) of the funds received by the City from the Gila River Indian 
Community pursuant to such application. 
 

SECTION 3. The City, by virtue of this Resolution, is simply acting as a financial conduit 
between the Gila River Indian Community and the Southwest Valley YMCA, and 
is in no way: 

a. Agreeing or obligating itself to monitor or report on the expenditure of any 
grant funding distributed to or on behalf of the Southwest Valley YMCA; 
or 



Resolution No. 2023-2294 
Page 2 of 2 

b. Guaranteeing or warranting the accuracy, completeness or truthfulness 
of the information set forth in the application materials prepared by the 
Southwest Valley YMCA; or 

c. Supervising or taking any responsibility regarding the actions or activities 
undertaken by the Southwest Valley YMCA; or  

d. Representing that the Southwest Valley YMCA, either has, or does not 
have, another sources of funding relating to the intended use of grant 
funding set forth in this Resolution, including funding from grant 
applications made on behalf of the Southwest Valley YMCA to other 
Indian tribes.. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a _______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 



ITEM #: 10. 
DATE: 03/06/2023
AI #:1353

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROJECTS

 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Hugh Bigalk, P.E., City Traffic Engineer; Brian Harvel,

Streets Superintendent

SUMMARY
Request City Council approve expenditures up to $3,678,789 for FY2023 pavement
management projects.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve expenditures up to $3,678,789 for FY2023 pavement management projects. (Hugh
Bigalk, P.E., City Traffic Engineer; Brian Harvel, Streets Superintendent)

FISCAL IMPACT
The FY2023 pavement management budget includes $3,678,788 in HURF and General Funds
in the Engineering Operating budget.  Identified in Table 1 below are the FY2023 pavement
management projects.

Table 1: FY2023 Pavement Management Projects 
Item Total

Asphalt Micro Surfacing $2,321,781
Surface Seal $1,157,008

ADA Ramp Improvements $200,000
Total $3,678,789

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
On March 17, 2014, and August 25, 2014, the city’s pavement management consultant, APT,
presented an update on their pavement management project, discussing treatment strategies
and funding recommendations. During those presentations, the City’s Pavement Condition
Index (PCI) of 68.1 was presented to Council. The city’s PCI has increased by 8.3 points from
68.1 in FY2014 to 76.4 in FY2022 from the inventory of all city-maintained streets. We
anticipate the PCI will remain stable in future years based on the pavement management
program, the Capital Improvement Program, and the continued development of unimproved
roads in the city.

STAFF ANALYSIS



The proposed FY2023 pavement management projects will improve a total 72.48 lane-miles.
 This equates to improving 6.45% of the City’s current 1,124 lane miles.

A description of each preservation type is provided below, followed by a list of roadways or
neighborhoods recommended for the designated pavement treatment:

Micro Surfacing – A product that is commonly used on arterial and collector roads, and is
effective at correcting or inhibiting raveling and oxidation of the pavement surface,
improving surface friction, sealing the pavement surface, and filling minor surface
irregularities and wheel ruts up to 1.25 inches deep.  Micro-surfacing typically lasts 5 - 7
years. 

1.

· Estrella Pkwy from Vineyard Rd to Elliot Rd
· Elliot Rd from 175th Ave to 186th Ln
· Citrus Rd from Indian School Rd to Campbell Dr
· Yuma Rd from Estrella Pkwy to Sarival Ave
· 143rd Ave from Yuma Rd to N of Celebrate Life Way
· Celebrate Life Way from Litchfield Rd to Bullard Ave
· PebbleCreek Pkwy from Charles Blvd to Camelback Rd
· Thomas Rd from Litchfield Rd to Estrella Mountain Community College
· Auto/Test Dr from Litchfield Rd to Litchfield Rd
· 137th Ave from Van Buren to Test Dr
· Sedella Pkwy / W Campbell Citrus Rd to Indian School Rd
· La Maroma Dr / W  Campbell from Perryville Rd to Sedella Pkwy
· Cotton Ln from Yuma Rd to Loop 303

2. PMM Sealcoat – A high performance mineral and fiber reinforced asphalt emulsion blended
with polymers and special additives.  Guard Top Ultra sealcoats are commonly used on
residential streets with minimal aggregate loss and cracking.   Provides a long lasting rich
black color while waterproofing the surface.  Typically lasts 5 to 7 years.
 
· Travesia
· Paseo Verde
· Desert Breeze W
· Desert Breeze E
· Desert Vista E
· Desert Vista W
· Enclave 
· Highlands
· Foothills
· Sunrise at Wigwam
· The Enclave @ EMR
· The Palisades @ EMR
· The Vistas @ EMR

Existing city contracts with the following companies will be used for pavement treatments and
ADA ramp repairs and replacements:
Viasun Corporation
Sunland Asphalt

Attachments



Presentation 



FY2023 Pavement Management Projects

March 6, 2023



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

AGENDA

• Pavement Condition Results
• Treatments for FY2023
• Treatment Locations
• Recommendation



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

PAVEMENT CONDITION INDEX

Pavement Condition Index (PCI)
• Collected by a consultant every seven years
• Rated on a scale from 1 to 100
• PCI of 68.1 in FY2014
• PCI of 76.4 in FY2022



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

PAVEMENT TREATMENTS

• 72.48 lane miles

• 6.45% of our current 1,124 lane miles

• Residential streets will be surfaced with 
a Polymer Modified Masterseal (PMM) 
Seal Coat.

• Arterial and Collectors will be surfaced 
with a Micro Surfacing Seal.



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

MICRO SURFACING – BULLARD AVE

BEFORE TREATMENT AFTER TREATMENT



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

BEFORE TREATMENT AFTER TREATMENT

SURFACE SEAL (PMM)



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

PROJECT MAP - NORTH

MICRO SURFACING
• W CAMPBELL AVE
• N LA MAROMA DR
• N SEDELLA PKWY
• PEBBLECREEK PKWY
• W THOMAS RD

SURFACE SEAL
• DESERT VISTA W
• DESERT VISTA E
• SUNRISE
• DESERT BREEZE E
• DESERT BREEZE W
• PASEO VERDE
• TRAVESIA
• ENCLAVE 
• HIGHLANDS
• FOOTHILLS



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

PROJECT MAP - CENTRAL

MICRO SURFACING
• N COTTON LN
• W YUMA RD
• W CELEBRATE LIFE WAY
• N 143RD AVE
• W TEST DR
• W AUTO DR
• N 137TH AVE



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

PROJECT MAP - SOUTH

MICRO SURFACING
• ESTRELLA PKWY
• ELLIOT RD

SURFACE SEAL
• THE VISTAS 
• THE ENCLAVE
• THE PALISADES



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

COST SUMMARY

Asphalt Micro Surfacing:  
Asphalt Surface Seal:
ADA Ramp Improvements:

FY2023 Project Total:

$2,321,781
$1,157,008

$200,000

$3,678,789



FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT

RECOMMENDATION

Approve expenditures in the amount of $3,678,789 to complete 
FY2023 pavement management projects throughout the city.


	Agenda
	AI-1364_Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees
	AI-1166_Approval of Minutes
	       ATT_February 27, 2023 Draft Regular Meeting Minutes
	AI-1282_Creation of CIP Project Goodyear Water Reclamation Facility Master Plan, Authorize related budget amendments and Expenditure authorization. 
	AI-1285_Rio Reimagined Intergovernmental Agreement
	       ATT_Proposed IGA
	AI-1352_FINAL PLAT FOR CAMELBACK CENTER AT PV303
	       ATT_Aerial Photo
	       ATT_Final Plat
	018 Final Plat 1
	Sheets and Views
	Final Plat Sht 1
	OLE1



	018 Final Plat 2
	Sheets and Views
	Final Plat Sht 2
	OLE1



	018 Final Plat 3
	Sheets and Views
	Final Plat Sht 3
	OLE1



	018 Final Plat 4
	Sheets and Views
	Final Plat Sht 4
	OLE1




	AI-1357_Approve Expenditure of Funds for Construction of Four FY2023 CIP Projects
	AI-1358_Third Amendment to the Infrastructure Development Agreement for Project 10-11
	       ATT_Resolution w-Ex.1 Development Agreement
	Res 2023-2295 Microsoft IDA Amendment 3- (FINAL)
	RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2295
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	3rd Amendment to PH 10-11 DA-Signed

	AI-1360_APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS & RELATED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY
	       ATT_Budget Amendment Report
	AI-1342_Gila River Indian Community Revenue Sharing Grant Proposals
	       ATT_Resolution for City Applications
	       ATT_Resolution for Municipal Sponsorship
	AI-1353_FY2023 Pavement Management Projects
	       ATT_Presentation
	FY2023 Pavement Management Projects
	FY2023 pavement management
	Fy2023 pavement management
	FY2023 pavement management
	FY2023 pavement management
	FY2023 pavement management
	FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT
	FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT
	FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT
	FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT
	FY2023 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT


